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Staff Report   
City of Manhattan Beach 

  
 

TO:  Honorable Mayor Cohen and Members of the City Council 
 
THROUGH: Geoff Dolan, City Manager 
 
FROM: Richard Thompson, Director of Community Development 
  Eric Haaland, Associate Planner 
 
DATE: July 7, 2009 
 
SUBJECT: Consideration of Planning Commission Approval of a Coastal Development Permit 

and Minor Exception to Allow an Addition to an Existing Duplex at 121 24th Street 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council receive and file the decision of the Planning Commission 
approving the project subject to certain conditions. 
 
FISCAL IMPLICATION: 
There are no fiscal implications associated with the recommended action. 
 
DISCUSSION: 
The Planning Commission, at its regular meeting of June 10, 2009, APPROVED (5-0) a 453 
square foot addition to a 2-story duplex building on a standard walk street lot in the beach area. 
In addition to a Coastal Development Permit, a Minor Exception is proposed to reduce required 
useable open space. Most coastal permit applications involving single-family homes and 
duplexes successfully proceed administratively, but in this case, the City’s Coastal Program 
requires Planning Commission approval due to the additional Minor Exception request.  
 
The Planning Commission supported the project since it generally conforms to coastal program 
zoning requirements. The resulting 2,393 square feet of total floor area would be 52% of the 
site’s allowable 4,590 square feet. The existing 2-story building height would remain, where a 3-
story height is permitted. While the building’s existing front yard setback is nonconforming, the 
rear portion being modified has conforming side yards and triple the minimum rear setback. 
Only two of the four required parking spaces exist, however, some surplus driveway area is 
available for parking. Since this project is considered a minor remodel, the code permits the 
building’s nonconforming parking and front setback to remain. 
 
The Planning Commission also found the Minor Exception request to be appropriate since it met 
the required findings, and is consistent with the intention of this specific type of Minor 
Exception as established by the city’s “Mansionization” project of 2008, which is to encourage 
lower buildings rather than prompting property owners to add upper floor levels as a result of 
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open space requirements. The required amount of open space is 440 square feet, but the resulting 
amount would only be 204 square feet after replacing most of the existing rear deck area with 
living area. The Commission commented that the retention of the 2-story character of the 
existing building was a very desirable result for the neighborhood, in exchange for less useable 
open space within the building.  
 
A public notice for the project was mailed to property owners within 100 feet of the site and 
published in the Beach Reporter newspaper. The Planning Commission received no comments or 
testimony from neighbors during the public hearing. 
  
ALTERNATIVES: 
The alternatives to the staff recommendation include: 
 

1. REMOVE this item from the Consent Calendar, APPEAL the decision of the Planning 
Commission, and direct that a public hearing be scheduled. 

 
 
Attachments:  

Resolution No. PC 09- 06 
P.C. Minutes excerpt, dated 6/10/09 
P.C. Staff Report, dated 6/10/09 
Plans (separate/NAE) 
 
(NAE) – not available electronically 
 

C: Richard Ballew, Applicant/Owner, Applicant 
David Watson, Project Architect 

 
























